
MINUTES 
ROCKY POINT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

March 1, 2004 
 
 

Meeting called to Order at 7:32 PM.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Present:   Geraldine Thalen, President 
  Michael Matera, Vice-President  

Jane Bonner, Trustee 
  Howard Gimple, Trustee 
  Joseph Sanseverino, Trustee 
  James J. Gerardi, Superintendent of Schools 
  Carla D’Ambrosio, Assistant Superintendent for Instruction 
  Stephen Bilyk, Interim School Business Official 
  Irene Pedota, District Clerk 
 
Absent:  None 
 
Mrs. Thalen opened the meeting to questions or comments from the audience.  There were none.  Mrs. 
Thalen explained that Mr. Bilyk would present the personnel aspect of the budget following the regular 
meeting and there would be another opportunity for questions and comments at that time.  
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Principals’ Reports 
 
Rocky Point High School – Principal William B. Caulfield: 

• There will be a College Information Night this Wednesday at 7:00 PM where packets of valuable information will 
be distributed to each family that attends. 

• Representatives from over 50 colleges will speak to students at Mini College Day on March 31st at 9:15 AM in 
the gym. 

• Every junior will be invited along with his or her parents to meet with guidance counselors to discuss college 
searches, and they will receive a College and Career Handbook. 

• Senior citizens are invited free of charge to attend a presentation of the high school musical, Damn Yankees, 
tomorrow afternoon at 3:30 PM. 

• Damn Yankees opens this Thursday, Friday and Saturday at 7:30 PM.  Tickets cost $8.00 and may be 
purchased at the door or by calling extension 3063. 

• The high school marching band will perform for the St. Patrick’s Day parade on March 14th beginning at 1:00 
PM. 

• Fifth-three students (the highest number from Rocky Point) will be attending All-County rehearsals this month. 
• Thanks to Mr. Richard Acritelli and the Social Studies Department, arrangements were made for Congressman 

Tim Bishop to speak to juniors and seniors during an assembly on February 11th.  Various pertinent issues were 
discussed. 

• The annual Senior Citizen Prom, hosted by the Be A Nicer Neighbor Club, will be on Thursday, March 11th from 
4:30 to 8:30 PM.  Tickets may be obtained by calling the high school main office. 

• Congratulations to the Rocky Point High School yearbook staff and their advisor, Mrs. Joyce Connolly, for being 
recognized by the Taylor Publishing Company with an Honorable Mention Award and has been featured in the 
“2004 Yearbook” Yearbook. 

• Mr. Caulfield introduced Mrs. Tammy MacPherson, advisor of the Community Service Club, who spoke about 
the Interact Club and their involvement with the Rotary and the community through various activities including 
Christmas cards for shut-ins, a coat drive for migrant workers, holiday coin drives and a planned car wash in 
the spring. 

• A charter and banner naming Rocky Point High School as an official Interact chapter was presented by Mr. Jeff 
Davis of the Rotary.  He explained that the Rotary is an international organization dedicated to the ideal of 
living in peace with the rest of the world. 

• Mrs. Thalen thanked Mr. Davis and members of the Rotary for attending the meeting and for sponsoring our 
students. 

 
Rocky Point Middle School – Principal Joseph T. Centamore: 

• Middle school students have been learning research techniques and computer programs, such as Think.com 
and Inspiration in the library/media center. 

• The National Junior Honor Society will provide tutors for struggling students during lunch or after school.  
Parents should contact the guidance office if interested. 

• The Student Government organized Spirit Week during the last week of February at the Middle School and 
dances will be held later this month. 

• Winter Sports Night will be on March 31st at 7:00 PM. 
• All four schools participated in the Battle of the Building Volleyball Tournament last week and over $2,000.00 

was collected for the Kids In Need Foundation. 
• Social Studies teacher Nyree Roviello has arranged for seventh and eighth grade students to participate in a 

mock trial at NYIT on March 26th.  
 
Joseph A. Edgar School – Carol Tvelia: 

• Congratulations to the middle school staff for winning the Battle of the Buildings Volleyball Tournament. 
• Students raised over $10,000 for the American Heart Association during the annual Jump Rope for Heart event. 
• PARP begins on March 8th with students participating in a “Read to Feed” program. 
• PTA meeting this month will be held at the FJC School this month due to Primary Day. 
• The school play has been scheduled for the end of the month. 
• Mr. Yashowitz and Mrs. Alberti were awarded a MESTRACT grant to hold a series of parent workshops for 

parents of children with disabilities.  Please call the main office to register or for additional information. 

1 



• Prime Time will be on Friday night for the top readers who participated in the Madagascar-Ankizay fund 
program. 

• Fifth grade classes are preparing for their Operation Montserrat e-missions. 
• Third grade students will participate in an in-school field trip as part of their science lab experiences this month. 

 
Frank J. Carasiti Elementary School – Principal Paul Read: 

• Second grade students visited the Long Island Science Center in Riverhead.  The trip provided many 
opportunities for active participation by students. 

• The PARP breakfast on 2/7/04 was a major success thanks to PTA, parents and staff. 
• A barbershop quartet entertained students on February 14th for Valentine’s Day and will perform again during 

an assembly for St. Patrick’s Day on March 17th. 
• Congratulations to the middle school for winning the Battle of the Buildings Volleyball Tournament.  He is proud 

of the FJC who participated and looks forward to next year’s games. 
• This month, teachers and staff will work together on the Author’s Day Committee to select an author for study 

for the end of this year or early next year. 
• The Literacy Collaborative Book Nook Committee, which consists of parent volunteers and classroom teachers, 

will work together to bind student’s work.  The final results will be class celebrations of students’ writing. 
• The Kindergarten Atrium Committee will work to design and build an outdoor learning lab for students in the 

enclosed kindergarten courtyard area.  Ideas include a small above-ground pool and greenhouse. 
• The Earth Day Committee will involve the children in activities that help them understand ways to preserve the 

environment.   
• Two hundred forty-two kindergartners have registered for the 2004-05 school year so far, which is just a 

slightly fewer than last year at the same time.  Final enrollment last year was approximately 311, and present 
kindergarten enrollment is 300. 

 
MINUTES 
  
Upon a motion made by Michael Matera and seconded by Joseph Sanseverino, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the following Board of Education Meeting 
be accepted as presented: Regular Meeting, January 26, 2004 and Special Meeting, February 2, 2004.  All in 
favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
BOND ISSUE PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS  
 
Upon a motion made by Joseph Sanseverino and seconded by Howard Gimple, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education accept 
and approve the attached change orders with reference to bond issue related projects.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
SENIOR CITIZENS TAX EXEMPTION  
 
Upon a motion made by Howard Gimple and seconded by Jane Bonner, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education accept 
the exemption according to the attached amended income schedule.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
RESOLUTION TO ELIMINATE THE REDUCED PRICE SCHOOL MEALS 
 
Upon a motion made by Jane Bonner and seconded Michael Matera, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education 
support legislation to eliminate the reduced price school meals programs and to provide free meals for all children with 
family incomes below 185 percent of poverty by signing the attached resolution which will be sent to the State’s 
Congressional delegation in Washington, DC (entire resolution is attached).  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
COMMITTEES ON SPECIAL EDUCATION/PRESCHOOL SPECIAL EDUCATION RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Upon a motion made by Michael Matera and seconded by Joseph Sanseverino, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education votes 
to arrange for appropriate services pursuant to the recommendations of Schedule 3-01-04-A and 3-01-04-B.  All in favor 
– Motion carried 5-0.  
 
PERSONNEL 
 
Upon a motion made by Joseph Sanseverino and seconded by Howard Gimple, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education accept 
the attached Personnel changes.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0.   
 
Mrs. Thalen thanked the four teachers who are retiring for their many years of service to the district and community.  
She added that it will be extremely difficult to fill Mr. Texeira’s shoes and that the retirements will not take effect until 
the end of this school year. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHANGE OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING DATE 
 
Upon a motion made by Howard Gimple and seconded by Jane Bonner, the following resolution was offered: 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, that the Board of Education votes 
to change the April meeting date from April 26, 2004 
to April 27, 2004.  This action allows the Board to vote on the proposed BOCES administrative budget and to elect 
members of the BOCES Board.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
PRESENTATION OF A FIRST DRAFT OF THE 04-05 SCHOOL BUDGET WITH REGARD TO PERSONNEL  
 

2 



• Mrs. Thalen introduced Mr. Stephen Bilyk for the presentation of the final portion of the budget, which includes 
staffing requirements.   

• Mr. Bilyk announced that the district anticipates the addition of the equivalent of 9.3 new teaching positions 
next year.  He explained that there is also a proposal for an alternative to the BOCES program.  He asked Mrs. 
Sherry Alessandro to explain staffing modifications for the 2004-05 school year. 

• Mrs. Alessandro explained that proposed staffing was determined with an eye towards providing the best 
possible education for our children. 

o Two additional teaching positions are planned for the Frank J. Carasiti School to accommodate 
kindergarten overflow – one position each for first and second grade. 

o Staffing would remain relatively stable at the Joseph A. Edgar School.  In order to allow staff to 
incorporate technology in the classroom, a half-time technology integration teacher was proposed to 
provide on-site support and instruction for teachers.  This position is federally funded. 

o Mrs. Alessandro explained that the middle school opened with minimal staff last year.  An assistant 
principal will be added to assist with student management as well as 1.6 teaching positions, which 
amounts to .2 positions in each of the seventh and eighth grades core areas.  In an effort to eliminate 
overtime and alleviate some of the overload, a ten-month secretarial position will also be added. 

o Two additional science positions are proposed for the high school to eliminate overload and 
accommodate increased enrollment.  Also, two teaching sections in math, English and social studies 
are proposed.  Additional changes may become necessary after the scheduling process, which is 
currently going on, is completed. 

o Due to the increased number of classified students, the addition of two special education teachers at 
the middle school is proposed.  Again, some changes may become necessary after annual reviews are 
completed. 

o Mrs. Alessandro reminded everyone that decisions are based on students’ needs. 
• Mrs. Thalen asked for clarification of the positions at the high school. 
• Mrs. Alessandro explained that the proposal called for two additional science positions as well as two sections 

each for math, English and social studies (.4 each). 
• Mrs. Thalen asked if there were part time positions already. 
• Mrs. Alessandro replied that the district was looking to add these positions. 
• Mrs. Thalen asked how the positions would be advertised. 
• Mrs. Alessandro explained that the positions would be listed on the website as anticipated openings and further 

information would be given to applicants after they respond. 
• Mr. Sanseverino asked if there was any reimbursement for the half-time technology integration teacher and if 

they were reimbursed one-time only. 
• Mrs. Alessandro explained that the position was federally funded and would be so as long as funds remain from 

year to year. 
• Mr. Matera asked for the total number of people. 
• Mrs. Alessandro replied 9.3 teaching positions. 
• Mr. Lagnena asked if the two science positions at the high school were reinstatement of the two positions that 

were lost due to retirement. 
• Mrs. Alessandro thanked Mr. Lagnena for the clarification and agreed that they were. 
• Mr. Bilyk explained that we currently have twenty-two students enrolled in the cosmetology program at BOCES 

at a cost of $9,466 per student in tuition and $1,845 in transportation per student for a total cost of $248,387. 
• Mr. Bilyk also explained that the district is investigating the possibility of bringing the program back to the 

district.  The cost for the teacher, aide, equipment, room modifications, etc. would total $113,533 and result in 
a savings of $115,307.  Up to fifty students could be serviced instead of the 22 currently attending BOCES and 
he is recommending this alternative to the Board. 

• Mr. Gimple asked if there were other benefits. 
• Mrs. Annette Sclafani, Director of Student Services, explained that more students would have the opportunity to 

enroll in the program and still be able to participate in after-school clubs and activities.   She added that forty-
nine students who were interested in the program visited BOCES last week. 

• Mr. Gerardi asked if there were additional benefits to the community. 
• Mrs. Sclafani explained that students could provide senior citizens and other members of the community with 

their services at very low costs. 
• Mr. Sanseverino asked which grade levels would participate. 
• Mrs. Sclafani replied that eleventh grade students would participate in Part I and seniors would participate in 

Part II.  Students would also be able to compete in contests throughout NYS. 
• Mrs. Bonner asked if they would graduate with their cosmetology license upon completion of the course. 
• Mrs. Sclafani replied that they would be certified. 
• An audience participant suggested that the teacher who was hired for the cosmetology program should have a 

dual certification in the event that the program didn’t work out so that he/she wouldn’t loose their job. 
• Mr. Gerardi explained that all teachers must be certified in their field and occasionally happen to have another 

certification. 
• Mr. Lagnena asked how much would be saved after the first year.   
• Mr. Bilyk replied that initial cost of equipment and room modifications would be approximately $26,000, so the 

savings would be greater in the following years. 
• Mr. Bilyk reminded everyone that the next budget workshop would be on March 15, 2004.   

 
Mrs. Thalen announced that one hundred forty-three people responded to the on-line budget survey.  Of those 
responses, there were many comments and forty-four questions.  Replies will be posted on the website for everyone to 
read.  Comments included the following: 
 

• Six required an education response 
• Eleven said they were pleased with the schools  
• Six said that taxes were too high 
• Two said that teachers’ salaries were too high 
• Four said busing should be reduced 
• One said staff should pay more for benefits 
• One was dissatisfied with test results 
• One asked for better coaches 
• One was opposed to the Gifted and Talented Program 
• One suggested that the board and administration come out against President Bush 
• One said there shouldn’t be any further building improvements 

3 



4 

• One said that the superintendent should be full time 
• Two would like to see more clubs and a second grade chorus 
• One believes that staff should report to work at regular time whenever there is a two-hour delay 
• Four require responses from the superintendent 
• One suggested a way to do away with Social Security 
• One would like to see the superintendent’s “slush fund” reduced 

 
Mrs. Thalen announced that these statistics, as well as lengthy responses will be included on the district’s website. 
 
Mrs. Thalen asked if there were any other questions and comments from the community: 
 

• Mrs. Amoscato took the opportunity to thank the varsity and junior varsity volleyball team for officiating at the 
Battle of the Buildings Volleyball Tournament. 

• Mrs. Komorowski said that at the last meeting she had specific questions for Eileen Manitta, which she feels 
were not answered to her satisfaction.  She would like to know the specific number of students in special 
education with IEPs, 504s, outside district placement, etc. and the amount that the district is reimbursed from 
the state for services that are provided to special education students.  She would like to dispel the notion that 
the entire cost for special education is paid for by the district, and she would like to know the actual cost to the 
district after state aid reimbursement. 

• Mrs. Manitta replied that the numbers are available since the breakdowns are required for various state reports.   
• Mrs. Thalen suggested that Mrs. Komorowski contact the district office to make an appointment to request the 

information she is seeking. 
• Mrs. Komorowski also had specific questions regarding staff development and training. 
• Mrs. Thalen replied that she should contact Mr. Gerardi or Mrs. D’Ambrosio for a meeting to obtain specific 

answers. 
• Mrs. D’Ambrosio explained that specific dates for staff development are the day before students return to 

school and again on Superintendent’s Conference Day.  She also suggested that Mrs. Komorowski contact her 
office so they could discuss other training that staff receives.  

• Mrs. Komorowski commented that although there have been some gains as far as staff development goes, she 
is not happy with the rate.  She said that she still has a lot of questions and would like to see a public forum 
where these concerns could be addressed. 

• Mrs. Thalen asked if these concerns were discussed at SEPTA meetings. 
• Mrs. Komorowski replied that they were but that she doesn’t have all the answers.   She suggested a chat room 

where these concerns could be addressed. 
• Mrs. Thalen said that it would be a good idea for a member of administration to attend SEPTA meetings.  Mrs. 

Thalen said that she would try to attend, and she would also encourage other board members to do so.  She 
suggested to Mrs. Komorowski that she should arrange a meeting with. Eileen Manitta. 

• Mrs. D’Ambrosio said that both she and Mrs. Manitta would be happy to meet with her. 
• Mr. Johann expressed his concern with the practice of fundraising by students during clinics before they are 

chosen for teams.  He also feels their efforts might detract from the Booster Club. 
• Ms. Armet explained that Community Education runs various sports clinics and sell “entertainment books.”  

Other groups do it to purchase specialty equipment. 
• Mrs. Thalen said that she was under the impression that any items that students are asked to purchase are 

personal items that are not handed in at the end of the season.  All fundraising should be approved by the 
Athletic Director, and children should not be involved in fundraising before they have been selected for a team.   

 
There were no further questions or comments. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 8:44 PM a motion was made by Howard Gimple and seconded by Jane Bonner to go into Executive Session to discuss 
personnel matters.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Irene Pedota 
      District Clerk 
 
The Board returned to Open Session at 9:13 PM. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 9:14 PM a motion was made by Howard Gimple and seconded by Joseph Sanseverino, for the Board of Education 
adjourn the meeting.  All in favor – Motion carried 5-0. 
    
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Gerardi 
      Superintendent of Schools 
       


	SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
	Principals’ Reports
	MINUTES
	CHANGE OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING DATE
	EXECUTIVE SESSION

